ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 27, 2006
1:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Gary Wl ken, Vice Chair
Senator Kim Elton

Senat or Donny O son

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Lyda G een
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 251
"An Act relating to imunization for neningitis of postsecondary
students residing on canpus.”

MOVED SB 251 OUT OF COWM TTEE

SENATE BILL NO. 244
" An Act prohi biting unfair di scrim nation agai nst an
acupuncturist; anmending the definition of ‘'provider' as it
relates to authorized collective negotiations by physicians
affecting the rights of providers under health benefit plans;
and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 19
Relating to creating the Task Force to Assess Public Reporting
of Health Care Associ ated | nfections.

MOVED SJR 19 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 242
"An Act updating the terminology in statutes for persons wth
disabilities; and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 357(FIN)
“"An Act updating the terminology in statutes for persons wth
disabilities; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSHB 357(FIN) OUT OF COMM TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- February 27, 2006



BILL: SB 251
SHORT TI TLE: POSTSEC. STUDENT MENI NG TI S | MMUNI ZATI ON
SPONSCR(s) : LABOR & COMVERCE

01/ 30/ 06 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 06 (S) HES

02/ 08/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 08/ 06 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 27/ 06 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 244

SHORT TI TLE: NO DI SCRI M NATI ON AGAI NST ACUPUNCTURI ST
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) WAGONER

01/ 19/ 06 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 06 (S L&C, HES

02/ 07/ 06 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 07/ 06 (S Heard & Held

02/ 07/ 06 (S M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 14/ 06 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 14/ 06 (S) Moved SB 244 Qut of Conmittee
02/ 14/ 06 (S M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 15/ 06 (S L&C RPT 3DP 2NR

02/ 15/ 06 (S DP: BUNDE, ELLIS, STEVENS B
02/ 15/ 06 (S NR: DAVI S, SEEKI NS

02/ 27/ 06 (S HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SJR 19

SHORT TITLE: TASK FORCE ON HOSPI TAL | NFECTI ONS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STEVENS G

02/ 14/ 06 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 06 (S) HES, FIN

02/ 27/ 06 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 242

SHORT TI TLE: STATUTORY REFERENCES TO DI SABI LI TI ES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) FRENCH

01/ 18/ 06 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 06 (S) HES
02/ 27/ 06 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

Bl LL: HB 357
SHORT TITLE: STATUTORY REFERENCES TO DI SABI LI TI ES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LSON

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- February 27, 2006



01/ 11/ 06 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 11/ 06 (H HES, FIN

01/ 24/ 06 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 24/ 06 (H Heard & Held

01/ 24/ 06 (H M NUTE( HES)

01/ 31/ 06 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 31/ 06 (H Moved CSHB 357(HES) Qut of Conmittee

01/ 31/ 06 (H M NUTE( HES)

02/ 01/ 06 (H HES RPT CS(HES) 4DP 1NR

02/ 01/ 06 (H DP: Cl SSNA, GARDNER, SEATON, W LSON

02/ 01/ 06 (H NR:  KOHRI NG

02/ 13/ 06 (H FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

02/ 13/ 06 (H Moved CSHB 357(FIN) Qut of Commttee

02/ 13/ 06 (H M NUTE( FI N)

02/ 17/ 06 (H FIN RPT CS(FIN) 5DP 2NR 1AM

02/ 17/ 06 (H DP: STOLTZE, KERTTULA, HAWKER, FOSTER,
MEYER,

02/ 17/ 06 (H NR: HOLM KELLY:;

02/ 17/ 06 (H AM  WEYHRAUCH

02/ 17/ 06 (H LETTER OF | NTENT W TH FI N REPORT

02/ 22/ 06 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 22/ 06 (H VERSI ON:  CSHB 357( FI N)

02/ 23/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 23/ 06 (S) HES, FIN

02/ 27/ 06 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Scott Thorson, CEO

Net wor k Busi ness Systens

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 251.

Jay Butler, Acting Chief,

Epi dem ol ogy Secti on

Di vi sion of Public Health

Department of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 251 and SJR 19.

Amy Seitz, Legislative Al de

Staff to Senator Wagoner

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 244.

SENATE HES COWMM TTEE - 3- February 27, 2006



Mel anie M I I horn, Director

Division of Retirenent & Benefits

Depart ment of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, AK 99811-0200

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to SB 244.

Freda MIler, Health Benefits Manager

D vision of Retirenent & Benefits

Department of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, AK 99811-0200

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to SB 244.

Val eri e DelLaune,

Li censed Acupuncturi st

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported of SB 244.

Senator Gary Stevens

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SJR 19.

Rod Betit, President

Al aska State Hospital Nursing Home Association
426 Main Street

Juneau, AK 99801

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SJR 19.

Lori Herman

Provi dence Hospital

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported of SJR 19.

Senator Hollis French

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 242.

Representati ve Peggy W1 son

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 357.

Kevin Gadsey, Representative

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- February 27, 2006



Sout heast Al aska | ndependent Living (SAIL)
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 242 and HB 357.

Faith Myers

Mental Heal th Advocate

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 242 and HB 357.

Dorrance Col lins

Mental Health Advocate

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SB 242 and HB 357.

Aaron Dani el son, Legislative aide

Intern to Representative WI son

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Avail abl e for questions related to HB 357.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 1:33:40 PM
Present were Senators Gary WIlken, Kim Elton, Donny d son, and
Chair Fred Dyson.

SB 251- POSTSEC. STUDENT MENI NG TI'S | MMUNI ZATI ON

CHAI R FRED DYSON announced SB 251 to be up for consideration.
1:34: 43 PM
SENATOR CON BUNDE, sponsor of SB 251, explained that the bill

that passed l|ast year relating to postsecondary schools and
nmeningitis was too broad because it included postsecondary

schools w thout dormitories. The new requirenent is burdensone
to schools and an invasion of student privacy for little
pur pose. SB 251 would exenpt post secondary  educati onal

institutions without dormtory facilities from the requirenent
of information distribution about neningitis. The sponsor of the
previous bill agreed that this adjustnment is appropriate.

1: 37: 24 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- February 27, 2006



SENATOR KIM ELTON questioned why the phrase “intends to reside”
is used rather than "will reside.”

SENATOR BUNDE answered that it was the drafter’s | anguage.
SENATOR ELTON said he would follow up with the drafter.
SENATOR OLSON asked how many institutions this would apply to.

JANE ALBERTS, Staff to Senator Con Bunde, said that data was
difficult to find.

CHAI R DYSON opened public testinony.

1:39:38 PM

SCOIT THORSON, CEO Network Business Systens, testified in
support of SB 251. He said the current situation doesn’'t work

for distance learning for a nunber of reasons for the follow ng
reasons. Students have to sign docunents that appear to invade

their privacy. Second, it increases the cost of education.
Third the regulations require the state to keep records, but it
is not clear how this benefits the state. Fourth, the current
requirenents don't do anything to reduce the potential of
meningitis. Fifth, the original wording pertained to
post secondary institutions with dormtories, but there are 136
postsecondary institutions wthout dormtories that wll Dbe
af f ect ed.

1:44:. 46 PM

JAY BUTLER, Acting Chief, Epidemology Section, Dvision of
Public Health, Departnent of Health & Social Services (DHSS),
supported SB 251. He said that various epidem ol ogical studies
suggest that the overall risk of neningococcal neningitis is
relatively low, but risk is ten to twenty-five tinmes higher
anong dorm residents. He added that the provisions in SB 251
also bring the law into line with recomendations from the
Center for Disease Control’s advisory commttee on inmmunization
practices and the recomendations of the American Acadeny of
Pedi atri cs.

SENATOR OLSON asked about the frequency of allergic reactions to
i mruni zati ons.

MR. BUTLER replied that they are quite uncommon

SENATE HES COWMM TTEE - 6- February 27, 2006



SENATOR OLSON asked whether there have been any other negative
reactions or side affects associated with the vacci nati ons.

MR. BUTLER replied that a small nunber of the recipients of the
conj ugate vaccine developed Cuillian-Barre syndrone. He added
that this occurred after upward of one mllion doses of the
vaccine had been admnistered and followup on the incidents
does not suggest a relationship between the vaccine and those
events.

SENATOR OLSON asked if any of the affected people died as a
result of the syndrone.

MR. BUTLER replied that all of them survived.

SENATOR OLSON asked how nuch the conjugate vaccine and the
regul ar vacci ne cost.

MR. BUTLER replied that for the public sector, the cost of the
conjugate vaccine is about $60 and the cost of the regular
vacci ne i s sonewhat |ess.

1:49:23 PM

SENATOR W LKEN noved to report SB 251 and attached fiscal notes
from commttee with individual recomrendations. There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

1:49: 41 PM

SB 244- NO DI SCRI M NATI ON AGAI NST ACUPUNCTURI ST

CHAI R FRED DYSON announced SB 244 to be up for consideration.
1:49:56 PM

AMY SEITZ, Staff to Senator Wagoner, said that SB 244 adds
acupuncturists to the list of licensed providers in the Unfair
Discrimnation Statute. This would prohibit insurance conpanies
that offer group policies from unfairly discrimnating against
t hem

She added that the sponsor introduced the bill after review ng
the results of several studies that denonstrate the positive
affects of acupuncture. She referenced a 1993 Swedi sh study on a
group of recovering stroke patients that were treated wth
acupunct ure. According to the study, the treatnent of these

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- February 27, 2006



pati ents cost $26,000 |ess than patients w thout acupuncture and
required half the normal tine for recovery.

She referenced another study on knee surgery patients who
underwent acupuncture therapy before surgery. According to the
study, the treatnent of these patients cost $9,000 |ess per
patient than for patients wthout acupuncture. A Boston
Uni versity resear cher recently cl ai ned t hat acupuncture
treatnent for stroke and Carpel Tunnel Syndrone could reduce the
nation's nedical bill by 11 mllion.

She said, in addition to positive health benefits, acupuncture
has an extrenmely low rate of nalpractice associated wth

acupuncture. A bill was recently introduced at the federal |evel
to include acupuncturists into the Federal Insurance Act. She
continued to say that several i nsurance conpani es have

vol unteered to cover acupuncturi sts.
1:53:12 PM

SENATOR OLSON asked how long the results of acupuncture
treatnment |lasted for patients in the stroke study.

MS. SEITZ believed that they were long-termresults.

SENATOR COLSON asked how often acupuncture treatnment causes a
maj or bl eedi ng event.

M5. SEITZ said all the information she has read shows that it
happens very infrequently.

SENATOR OLSON asked the amount of education required for a
person to legally practice acupuncture.

M5. SEITZ replied that it requires a three-year graduate degree.
1:56: 50 PM

MELANIE M LLHORN, Director, D vision of Retirement and Benefits
(DRB), Department of Administration (DOA), provided information
on the state’s health plans and discussed how SB 244 would
affect them She said the Division admnisters tw health
pl ans, one for the active population and one for the retired
popul ation. She said that the conm ssioner of The Departnent of
Adm nistration has the authority to make changes to the health
pl ans.

SENATE HES COWMM TTEE - 8- February 27, 2006



FREDA M LLER, Health Benefits Manager, DRB, DOA, reported that
the health plans only cover acupuncture if a physician perforns
it in lieu of anesthetic during surgery. She said that passage

of SB 244 would allow acupuncturists to bill for office visits
related to the evaluation and nmanagenent of a condition. Si nce
SB 244 only expands coverage options, the bill is cost neutral

She remarked that acupuncture therapy itself would remain an
uncovered benefit unless there 1is a signed plan change
aut hori zed by t he conmm ssi oner of The Depar t ment of
Admi ni strati on.

SENATOR ELTON asked if SB 244 would allow coverage for visits to
an acupuncturist that are related to evaluation and nanagenent,
but not to therapy.

M5. MLLER replied that SB 244 confers recognized provider
status wupon acupuncturists thereby allowng them to bill for
visits related to evaluation and nanagenent. She added that SB
244 woul d not change any existing coverage for therapy since
that is determ ned by one’'s particular health plan.

SENATOR OLSON asked whet her SB 244 would change the
i mpati ent/outpatient status of acupuncture treatnent.

M5. MLLER replied it would not do so.

SENATOR W LKEN asked whether the bill would open up a new | eve
of service for plan nenbers and create additional costs for the
syst em

M5. MLLER replied that it only allows nenbers to see an
acupuncturist instead of a physician to evaluate and manage a
condition. She stressed that it does not increase the |evel of
coverage to which nenbers are already entitled for evaluation
and rmanagenent .

SENATOR WLKEN remarked that he would like M. Mllhorn's
reassurance that the |egislation would i ndeed be cost-neutral.

M5. MLLHORN said that according to Delloit Consulting, it costs
less to visit an acupuncturi st than a physician, and
consequently, the cost-neutral designation is conservative.

SENATOR WLKEN said he was concerned that the bill would
generate additional costs because it would create coverage for
the alternative treatnment of conditions for which sone would not
ot herw se see a physici an.

SENATE HES COWMM TTEE - 9- February 27, 2006



SENATOR COLSON said he was concerned about the possibility of
additional costs from lawsuits arising from the inability of
acupuncturists to eval uate and nmanage certain conditions.

CHAIR DYSON asked Ms. DelLaune to explain how the bill would
benefit the people of Al aska.

VALERI E DeLAUNE, |icensed acupuncturist, testified that she has
personal ly saved the state and its residents a |ot of noney by
providing an effective alternative to sone conventional
procedures. She remarked that coverage for acupuncture is the
nunber one requested benefit anbng insurance consuners. She
added t hat many i nsurance conpani es voluntarily cover
acupuncture and suggested that they would not do so if it did
not save them noney.

CHAIR DYSON said that he is struck by the fact that an
acupuncturist can mtigate the pain of surgery, but cannot seek
rei nbursenent for evaluating a condition.

M5. DeLAUNE said, with regard to Senator O son’s concern about
mal practi ce, t hat t he i nci dence of mal practice anong
acupuncturists is very | ow.

2:21: 03 PM

SENATOR OLSON asked the nunber of I|icensed and unlicensed
acupuncturists practice in the state.

MS. DeLAUNE replied that about 65 acupuncturists are licensed in
t he state.

M5. MLLER added it is illegal to practice acupuncture wthout a
license in the state.

SENATOR ELTON asked whether an acupuncture |icense could be
revoked in the case of mal practi ce.

M5. DeLAUNE replied that is correct, but the state has yet to
revoke an acupuncture |icense.

SENATOR CLSON asked how an acupuncturist is |icensed.

MS. DeLAUNE replied the state requires at |east three years of
graduate | evel education for |icensure.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- February 27, 2006



SENATOR COLSON asked whether the state requires a witten exam
for licensure.

M5. DeLAUNE replied the state requires that a prospective
licensee take certain courses on AIDS, CPR pass a witten and
practical exam and conplete 15 hours of continuing education
every two years.

SENATOR OLSON asked how this bill conpares to simlar bills in
ot her states.

M5. DeLAUNE replied the State of Washington has simlar
| egi sl ati on.

MS. SEITZ said that as of 1991, ten states covered acupuncture.

SENATOR W LKEN asked whether acupuncture treatnment would be
covered for small busi nesses under this bill.

M5. SEITZ replied that it woul d.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if the legislation would require managers
of private insurance plans to cover acupuncture treatnents that
they do not cover at the present tine.

M5. SEITZ replied that the bill does not affect the coverage
plans of any insurance provider; it only allows nenbers to
choose acupuncture for services already provided under their
pl ans.

2:39: 25 PM

SENATOR W LKEN asked if private plan managers woul d have to nmake
a plan nodification before covering acupuncturists for
eval uati on and rmanagenent and therapy servi ces.

M5. M LLER answered that adding acupuncturists to the recognized
provider list allows them to submt charges for evaluation and
managenent for any plan that covers it. The managers woul d have
to decide whether or not to cover acupuncture therapy in their
benefit pl ans.

SENATOR W LKEN cited Al aska Sal es and Service as an exanple of a
small private conpany and asked whether its plan covers
acupuncturists for providing eval uati on and nmanagenent servi ces.

M5. DeLAUNE di d not know.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- February 27, 2006



SENATOR W LKEN asked if the state and private providers would be
able to decide whether or not to cover acupuncture therapy and
eval uati on and rmanagenent services if the bill is passed.

M5. MLLER replied that is the case and added it is inportant to
remenber that typically the evaluation and managenent services
are already covered in all insurance plans.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if conferring recognized provider status
upon acupuncturists would allow them to receive coverage under
the state plan since it currently covers evaluation and
managenent services.

M5. MLLER replied that is correct.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if acupuncture therapy would not be covered
under the state plan until the comr ssioner of admnistration
amends the design of the benefit plan.

M5. MLLER replied that is correct.

SENATOR WLKEN asked if the comm ssioner or private plan
managers could decide to cover acupuncture therapy wthout the
passage of SB 244.

M5. SEITZ replied that they could do so.
SENATOR W LKEN asked why the bill is needed.
M5. MLLER replied the bill wuld ensure that insurance

conpanies could not refuse plan nanagers who decide to cover
acupunct ure.

SENATOR ELTON said it is inportant to note that the bill only
prevents insurance conpanies from discrimnating against
acupuncturists; it does not preclude them from charging for the
added servi ce.

CHAIR DYSON remarked it is not a pro-choice bill, but an anti-
discrimnation bill for a profession that is wi dely recogni zed.

SENATOR W LKEN expressed concern over costs that the bill would
generate for both the state and private insurance conpani es.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- February 27, 2006



CHAIR DYSON asked Ms. Seitz if she heard anything from the
i nsurance industry when the bill was heard in the Labor and
Commerce Conmmittee.

M5. SEITZ said she has not heard any opposition from the
i nsurance industry. She renmarked that many insurance conpanies
al ready voluntarily cover acupuncture.

CHAI R DYSON asked whet her insurance conpani es have been notified
about the bill.

MS. SEITZ said she has been trying to solicit comrents from the
i nsurance conpanies, but it doesn't seemto be a big issue for
t hem

SENATOR W LKEN remarked that while no one wants to discrimn nate,
the bill mght be less benign than it seens.

V. SEITZ remarked that it mght actually save noney.
Acupuncture is the only licensed profession in the state that is
not on the recogni zed providers list.

SENATOR ELTON said it would be inportant to deternine whether
t he anount of noney saved by visits to acupuncturists instead of
physi cians would offset the cost of visits to acupuncturists by
peopl e who woul d not ot herwi se see a physi ci an.

SENATOR CLSON said a study done five years ago showed that
peopl e saved noney when they underwent effective acupuncture
therapy as opposed to drug therapy because there are no side
effects associated with acupuncture.

2:54:46 PM

CHAI R DYSON held SB 244 in conmittee.

SJR 19- TASK FORCE ON HOSPI TAL | NFECTI ONS

2:55:15 PM

CHAI R FRED DYSON announced SJR 19 to be up for consideration.
SENATOR GARY STEVENS, Sponsor of Senate Joint Resolution (SJR)
19, said every year two mllion infections are acquired each

year in hospitals. These infections cost between $4.5 billion
and $11 billion and cause sone 90,000 deat hs each year. He added

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- February 27, 2006



that hospital infection is the sixth leading cause of death in
the country.

It is inportant for consuners to know how nedical facilities

fare with infection rates. SJR 19 creates a task force to
assess public reporting of health care associated infections.
It will have 11 nenbers who work during the interimto determ ne

what experience hospitals across the nation have in the public
reporting of hospital associated infections, develop a white
paper to be used in future legislation and create legislation to
assist in the collection of data from all hospitals across the
state on their infection rates.

2:56: 54 PM

SENATOR ELTON expressed concern that public nmenbers would not
receive reinbursenent for travel and other expenses and that it
woul d al so create an unfair burden on rural nenbers.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS replied that the <cost burden is not
expected to be prohibitively high because the panel wll only
neet three or four tines in Anchorage each year.

SENATOR ELTON asked if a rural consumer lives in a renpote town,
i ke Dutch Harbor, he would incur significant expenses while
traveling to the Anchorage neetings.

SENATOR GARY STEVENS replied that since this is an appointed
position, he could insure that the rural nenber |ives close to
Anchor age.

CHAIR DYSON said he recently spoke to a public health doctor
supported the resolution because it would be an inportant step
towards establishing a conprehensive web-based list of all the
provi ders around the state, their costs, and their track record.

SENATOR W LKEN suggested that it would be nobst convenient to
address Senator Elton’s concern in the Finance Commtt ee.

3:02: 52 PM

ROD BETIT, President, Alaska State Hospital Nursing Hone
Association (ASHNA), testified in support of SJR 19. He said
that the control of infections in a hospital environnent is a
conplex, difficult task. SJIR 19 woul d create val uabl e dial ogue
between the public, the legislature, and the nedical community
concerning the way that infection is reported. Hopefully this

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- February 27, 2006



would lead to useful, collaborative conclusions regarding what
the state should be doing to inprove things.

CHAIR DYSON asked the wtness whether his organization had
expressed support for the resol ution.

MR. BETIT answered he is confident that they w Il support it,
but they have not yet had a chance to discuss it.

SENATOR COLSON remarked that sonme of the statistics are startling
and asked whether there has been a significant increase in
infections in the recent past.

MR. BETIT answered there has not been a significant increase in
the recent past. The problem has never been addressed in a
system c way and the apparent urgency of the problemis due to
the significant increase in effort in the last three years.

SENATOR OLSON said nost of the hospitals in which he has been
granted privilege have had boards to address hospital
i nfections. He asked whether the boards are effectively
addressing the problem and if not, whether their inefficiency
is a reason for the resolution.

MR. BETIT replied that they are not as effective as one would
hope because there are so many different places in a hospita
where neasures nust be inplenmented and nonitored. He said that
the establishnment of a task force would augnent their efficiency
by consolidating data and conparing ideas.

LORI HERMAN, Providence Hospital, testified in support of SIR
19.

3:09:01 PM

JAY BUTLER, Acting Chief, Epidem ology Section, D vision of
Public Health Departnent of Health & Social Services, supported
SJR 19.

CHAIR DYSON asked Senator Elton if he would be confortable
addressing his aforenentioned concern in the Senate Finance
Comm ttee.

SENATOR ELTON replied that he would be confortable with that.

3:09: 30 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 15- February 27, 2006



SENATOR ELTON nmoved SJR 19 and attached fiscal notes from
commttee wth individual reconmendat i ons. There being no
objection it was so ordered.

3:10: 02 PM

SB 242- STATUTORY REFERENCES TO DI SABI LI TI ES

CHAI R DYSON announced SB 242 to be up for consideration.

SENATOR FRENCH, sponsor SB 242, said that SB 242 would update
termnology in statutes for persons with disabilities. He said
that HB 357 is a House bill that is very simlar to SB 242 only
nore devel oped, and in the interest of efficiency he would like
to have that bill discussed first.

3:10: 14 PM

CHAI R DYSON held SB 242 in committee.

HB 357- STATUTORY REFERENCES TO DI SABI LI TI ES

3:11: 04 PM
CHAI R DYSON announced CSHB 357(FIN) to be up for consideration.

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY WLSON, Sponsor of HB 357, said the
Departnment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnment and the CGovernor’s
Council on D sabilities requested the bill, which elimnates
denmeani ng term nol ogy pertaining to disabled persons that exists
in Al aska statute. She read the following from the Southeast
Al aska | ndependent G oup (SAIL):

American culture consistently redefines itself through
| anguage and subcul tures al so use | anguage to redefine
t hensel ves. Negros becane Blacks and then African
Americans. Honosexuals choose the term ‘gay  for
t hensel ves, and people with disabilities have done the
sanme over the years, attenpting to fight stereotypes
and negative inmagery.

Representative WIson said that the term ‘handi capped

originated as a slur and a reference to begging and it is tine
for Al aska to make this change.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -16- February 27, 2006



3:13: 50 PM

KEVI N GADSEY, SAIL representative, supported SB 242 and HB 357.

He said that SB 357 elimnates the term °‘handicapped’ from
statute and replaces instances of it with the term ‘people with
disabilities’ which is the term adopted under the Anericans wth
Disabilities Act (ADA).

3:15: 49 PM

KELLY DONNELLY, Partners in Policy Project, said that her
organi zati on supports SB 242 and HB 357 with some m nor changes.
She said in section 1, under AS.14.36.30B, item 1 should say
“students who have been classified under | ndi vi dual i zed
Education Plans (I1EPs)”. The reason being that the term
“mentally retarded” still appears in federal statute and the
af orenenti oned change would reflect that while the state
acknowl edges the use of the term for classification, it does
accept it as an appropriate termfor general reference.

3:19: 03 PM

FAITH MYERS, Mental Health Advocate, supported SB 242 and HB
357.

3:20: 40 PM

DORRANCE  COLLI NS, Ment al Health Advocate from Anchorage,
testified in support of SB 242 and HB 357.

CHAIR DYSON asked the sponsor about the aforenentioned
suggesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she didn't have a problemwth it.

AARON DANI ELSON, Staff to Representative WIson, said he would
have to consult with Departnment of Education to determ ne how
t he amendnent nmay inpact the bill.

3:22:59 PM
SENATOR W LKEN noved to report CSHB 357(FIN), the letter of
intent, and attached fiscal notes fromcommttee with individual

recommendati ons. There was no objection, and it was so ordered.

There being no further business to cone before the committee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the neeting at 3:23:25 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -17- February 27, 2006



SENATE HES COW TTEE - 18- February 27, 2006



